1. SOW Paragraph 2.1, Applications Software Support, indicates “support shall consist of ongoing day-to-day customer service (answering user questions, writing ad-hoc queries, routine data fixes, etc.) and work that results in one or more deliverables (software, documentation, etc.).  No indication of the volume of this customer service and deliverables work is provided. Yet, RFP Paragraph M.6.a(1) specifies that “the offeror’s proposed approach for day-to-day operational support of each contract task,…, as well as the proposed labor categories or staffing mix necessary to accomplish the effort” will  be evaluated. Please provide the estimated volume of customer service requests as well as the number and types of deliverables anticipated so that we can adequately address the staffing mix aspect of the evaluation factor.

The total Tier 1 support at the help desk is approximately 800 per month, and there are about 100 changes in change management for application changes accrued in the past year.
2. SOW Paragraph 2.3, CSO Computer Center Operations, describes the operating environment but does not indicate the specific number of servers. Please provide the number of each type of server so that we can adequately size the level of effort. Also, please indicate the typical number of production jobs as well as the typical number of instances requiring the installing, configuring, updating, and upgrading Veritas Netbackup Datacenter backup clients, agents, and server software.

Answer provided in IIPS. On all production and a few development servers.
3. SOW Paragraph 2.4, CSO Desktop Support, indicates the number of desktop/laptop PCs that are required to be supported. So that we may adequately size the effort, please indicate the estimated number of instances of technical support required to support the IT Call Center when Tier One support staff cannot resolve a problem. Also, please indicate the estimated number of hardware and software installations either per month or per quarter.

Tier 1 escalation has been previously answered.  Number of hardware & software installations are approximately 100 PC’s per year with standard software / images.
4. SOW Paragraph 2.5, Configuration Management, refers to a “knowledge base tool” and coordinating with CSO Call Center staff to interface it with PVCS Dimensions. Please provide additional details about the knowledge base tool, to include it contents and use.

The Western IT Call Center uses "HEAT" as its trouble ticket automated tracking tool.  HEAT also has a database of historical problems and their corollary solutions.  This database is referred to as the HEAT knowledge base.  The future Configuration Management direction is to record all trouble tickets and change requests in HEAT and then promote the sub-set that are truly change requests to PVCS Dimensions.  Western federal personnel have the technical capability to design, architect and implement the technical interface between these two systems and will retain that responsibility.  However, the contractor personnel performing the configuration management functions will need to be able to use/leverage the interface once it is in place.  We anticipate that the interface will likely be in the form of Web Services.

5. SOW Paragraph 2.6, Systems Administration, requires installing and maintaining CSO service software and hardware. Please indicate the quantity of software and hardware to be maintained so that we may size the level of effort required.

Inventory of servers provided upon e-mail request to Contracting Officer.  Support activity for servers is within standards for servers running the OS and layered products.
6. Regarding SOW Paragraph 2.7, Database Administration (DBA), please describe the estimated number of troubleshooting problems and TARs to be serviced, as well as the estimated number of BIDSS patches and Oracle database upgrades so that we may size the level of effort.

The number is as would be expected in normal administration of Oracle databases and Federal Financials.
7. SOW Paragraph 2.9, Western Domain Name Services (DNS) and Dynamic Host Configuration Protocol (DHCP) Services, requires the maintenance of DNS servers and DHCP addresses. Please identify the estimated number of servers, the number of addresses, and number of DNS entries so that we may size the level of effort.
Inventory of servers may be obtained by e-mail request of Contracting Officer.  There are few updates, normally when new services are added to CSO or public facing servers.
8. How is performance tracked for each individual throughout the year?
Monitored by Program Manager, or as determined by contractor.

9. What metrics are in place to follow the performance based criteria for this contract?
See Performance-Based Award Fee plan.

10. Who is responsible for the purchasing budgets for end-users requests?
Western.

11. Are there any service level agreements in place with the end-user community and if so, can we get a copy of the service levels?
The only SLA’s in place would be indicated in the statement of work.

12. What type of transition plan can the vendor expect if the current contractors are not in place with the new contract, when the new vendor takes over operations?
Transition plan should assume no lapse in services.

13. Questions  With regards to IT asset management, similar subtasks are identified for the desktop support (ref. 2.4), Configuration Management (ref. 2.5), and systems Administration (ref. 2.6).  Is there an overlap of effort defined by these or is each group responsible for asset management in their own areas (eg. Desktop/laptops, software applications, and servers respectively)?
It’s an integrated process.

14. While several of the primary functions imply some involvement in network operations and support (i.e. computer center operations and systems administrations), there does not appear to be a separate requirement for LAN/WAN Network support per se. Is network support provided under a different contract, by the Government, or is it Western's intention that network support be provided in the contract resulting from this solicitation?
WAN Network support is provided by Western.
15. Ref Sect 2.5, Configuration Management, most of the subtasks identified are clearly related to software configuration management with the exception of two subtasks:   i) the provision of system performance reports and ii) advising on documenting continuity of operations plans, etc.  We would expect that these tasks would more logically be performed as part of the systems administration and computer center operations functions respectively. 
Item (i)  the provision of system performance reports.  Agree that this sub-task may be performed by system administrators of both CPU and storage subsystems.  The reports will however be monitored by and submitted to configuration management because in Western, at the management level, configuration management and capacity management are combined.

Item (ii) advising on documenting continuity-of-operations plans.  While computer operations would have the continuity-of-operations lead, the inventory and change management functions within configuration management contribute significantly to both the design and currency of all continuity-of-operations plans.  The version control function within configuration management is also a critical step in restoration of operations and response to a disaster.  For that reason, a configuration management representative is essential to all continuity-of-operations planning and testing.  Therefore the function must be resourced at a level where some small amount of time may be devoted to those activities.

16.  Sect 2.3 CSO Computer Center Operations does in fact list a subtask identical to the operations subtask referenced above and Sect. 2.6 Systems Administration identifies the provision of systems performance reports, but is limited to support of the Office of Design in the CSO and not for the CSO Operations Center itself.  Is it Western's intention that these two tasks are to be performed as part of the configuration management function and, in the case of the systems performance reports, that these reports not be performed as part of the systems administration function?
See above, providing systems performance reports are tasks of both functions.

17. L.22 (b)(ii), Page 76. Please confirm that for Exhibit B, Summary of Direct Labor by Contract Period, Western only wants the Average proposed hourly rate for IT support, technical support and administrative support. That is to say that Western does NOT want proposed hourly labor rates for EACH INDIVIDUAL labor category.

The exhibit is a sample format. Please provide data in the format provided, with detail by labor category, hours, and rates, etc.
18. Section L.22 (c)(4) & (5) specifies that, “Each exhibit (Exhibits D & E) shall contain the expenses for the offeror’s previous two fiscal years, the current fiscal year . . .”Attachment G sample exhibits D & E provide column space for only one previous fiscal year. Does Western desire one or two prior fiscal year’s data along with the current fiscal year and projections for out years of the contract?

The exhibit is a sample format. Please provide two years of data. 
19. L. 21, Technical Proposal Preparation Instructions – Volume II (a)(4), Page 74. Proposal instructions state that only “elite size, 12 pitch type (equivalent) font should be used. Can a smaller font size be used for figures, tables, and graphics?
See Amendment 003.

20. Please provide the basis for travel estimates, i.e. number of trips to WLO and other travel or provide a estimated travel dollars cost that all bidders can use to simplify evaluation of cost proposals.  Previously answered – Assume $20,000.00 per year.
21. Section H.12 F please clarify, “failure by the contractor to comply with the requirements.”
Failure to comply with the requirements of the clause.
22. Several sections refer to Western standards/procedures/policy, for example H.17 (b); H.19 (c); many clauses in the award fee evaluation criteria; etc. Will a bidder’s library be established or access be provided to the appropriate guidance and requirements documents?  Previously answered question – by e-mail request to Contracting Officer.
23. Factor 5 – Cost Control – would seem that some, many, or possibly all, emergency service requirements are beyond the control of the contractor, yet affect the evaluation of the contractor’s performance. Please clarify what the basis for assessing this criteria to contractor’s performance.  The contractor needs to include costs associated with unexpected failures based on their experience and knowledge on supporting systems.
24. Do the response time requirements for onsite support apply to WLO and the other remote sites?  No.
25. Regarding the Organization chart provided. The document represents contract staff, some of which are vacant positions.
26. Additional comments & questions from Pre-proposal Conference:

a. Are CMMSei certificates required? No

b. Is there support to field locations?  Some at the help desk level, but very little. Possibly Novell Directory Services.
c. Are there S.L.A.’s currently? No baseline to draw upon. Performance has been satisfactory/excellent, but there is no history of metrics.

d. Is there a test bed/lab? No separate lab, but have test servers.

e. How is hardware support & refresh handled? Annual maintenance agreements, and by recommendation of contractor.

f. What is the percentage of new development?  Low.

g. How is the majority of development handled – contractor or Federal? Mostly contractor.

h. Reference Section G. 2, what is required by Accounting Code? Government will complete after award.
i. Are the CO approved, Western specific Training costs to be included in ODC’s?  Western specific training costs are allowable as ODC’s. For the purposes of this solicitation, assume $10,000.00 per year.
j. Are “on-call” hours included in Attachment F, DPLH Schedule?  No.
k. Is there Overtime?  Yes, as approved in the contract.
l. Is PKI, public key infrastructure included? This is maintained by Western.
